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Date: June 2, 2020  
 

To:  Local Public Agencies (LPA) & Consultant Community (ACEC) 
 

From: Bureau of Planning and Community Assistance 
 New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT) 
 
Re: Notice #2020-05: NH Department of Transportation Consultant Conflict of Interest 

Guidelines 
 
 

Dear Local Public Agencies (LPA’s) and consulting firms interested in working on Federal 
and State funded LPA projects.  We are writing to remind you that the Department’s June 12, 
2013 Conflict of Interest Guideline related to Preliminary Engineering (PE) and Construction 
Engineering (CE) applies to all projects including projects with sub-recipients, otherwise known 
as LPA projects.  In summary, the guideline (attached) is intended to assure procurement of 
consulting services for engineering design and/or construction inspection is done in a fair, open, 
and competitive manner, and avoids conflicting professional or personal interests when such 
competing interests could potentially affect a firm’s ability to provide impartial decisions and/or 
perform their contractual obligations. 

 
To better align the LPA program with the June 12, 2013 guideline, as well as the Department’s own 

practice for NHDOT managed projects, the Department is requesting that after July 1, 2020 all LPA 
projects that have not received approval from NHDOT to advertise bids should comply with the 2013 
guideline and be utilizing a different CE firm for construction inspection/oversight than the PE firm that 
was selected for the design.  In addition, the Department is requiring that after January 1, 2021 all LPA 
projects that have not received approval to advertise bids shall comply with the June 12, 2013 guideline.  
Please note, between July 1, 2020 and January 1, 2021, if an LPA should make the decision to utilize the 
same consultant for PE and CE, a formal waiver (outlined further in this notice) will NOT be required.  
However, the Department will require documentation from the consultant as outlined in the waiver 
section of this notice. 

   
To assist the LPA’s with this directive, the Department is currently developing a list of qualified CE 

firms for LPAs to review and select firms to provide proposals (3 proposals minimum).  This CE 
prequalification list, anticipated to be available this summer, will help ensure communities can find 
qualified firms to engage in CE services.  In addition, likely by the summer of 2021, the Department will 
have its own “on call” list of CE consultants that could work directly for NHDOT to manage the 
construction inspection aspects of an LPA project.  More information about both of these developing 



 
 
 
 

efforts can be found in the attached May 16, 2020 Community Assistance Notice #2020-03 LPA Project 
Management and Consultant Selection Options. 

 
Waiver Guidance 

 
As the attached June 12, 2013 guideline indicates, if a sub-recipient (LPA) determines there 

is a justified need to retain the same consulting firm for CE services on the same project the same 
firm performed PE services, then a waiver to the conflict of interest guidelines can be requested 
by the LPA to the Department.  The waiver documentation from the LPA to the Department 
needs to include the following information: 

 
a) A written request by the LPA (on LPA letterhead) to utilize the same firm for both PE 

and CE services on the same project, 
 

b) One of the following: 
 a statement by the firm that no conflict exists or,  
 a statement by the firm that a potential conflict could be perceived but 

mitigation measures will be implemented and tracked that will assure no 
conflict of interest. 

 
c) One of the following: 

 A statement by the firm that no conflict disclosures are necessary, or 
 The firm’s disclosure of any association, interest, or circumstance which 

could influence the firm’s judgment or quality of services 
 

d) A plan and procedures for mitigation to be put in place by the firm and the LPA to 
avoid: 

 A perception of a conflict of interest (if no conflict is known) and/or 
 A conflict of interest (if a conflict is identified) 

 
The waiver request information noted above shall be submitted to the Department’s 

Community Assistance Project Manager for review and forwarding onto the Department’s 
Director of Project Development, and eventually NHDOT’s Chief Engineer. 

 
 

Documentation between July 1, 2020 and January 1, 2021 
 

During the transition period, the documentation from the LPA to the Department needs to 
include the following information: 

 
One of the following: 

 a statement by the firm that no conflict exists with a short plan on how that 
will continue through the construction of the project, or  

 a statement by the firm that a potential conflict could be perceived but 
mitigation measures will be implemented and tracked that will assure no 
conflict of interest, including identification of those measures, or 



 
 
 
 

 A statement by the firm that a conflict exists.  In this case, the Department, 
LPA and consultant would have to come to specific written agreement that 
through the firm’s disclosure of any association, interest, or circumstance 
which could influence the firm’s judgment or quality of services, every 
reasonable effort will be made to eliminate any potential conflicts. 

 
The NHDOT believes that the 6-month transition time line noted above provides ample time 

for LPA’s to line up separate CE services on their LPA projects.  It is important to note that 
although the waiver process noted above is part of the attached June 12, 2013 guideline, the 
Departments intent is to only grant waivers on a very limited basis. 

 
Please refer any questions or concerns to either C.R. Willeke or Bill Watson. 
 

C.R. Willeke, PE     Bill Watson, PE 
Municipal Highways Engineer   Administrator 
Bureau of Planning and Community Assistance  Bureau of Planning and Community Assistance 
603-271-6472      603-271-3344 
Charles.Willeke@dot.nh.gov    Bill.Watson@dot.nh.gov  

 










